
 

 
County Hall, New Road, Oxford, OX1 1ND 

www.oxfordshire.gov.uk  Fax: 01865 783195  Media Enquiries 01865 815266 
 

Notice of a Meeting 
 

Growth & Infrastructure Scrutiny Committee 
Wednesday, 10 March 2010 at 10.00 am 

County Hall 
Membership 
 
Chairman - Councillor Patrick Greene 
Deputy Chairman - Councillor David Nimmo-Smith 
 
Councillors: Lorraine Lindsay-

Gale 
Michael Gibbard 
Charles Mathew 

 

Anne Purse 
Keith Strangwood 

John Tanner 
 

David Turner 
Nicholas P. Turner 

 

 
Notes:  

Date of next meeting: 13 May 2010 
 
What does this Committee review or scrutinise? 
• Transport; highways; traffic and parking; road safety (those areas not covered by the 

Safer & Stronger Communities Scrutiny Committee); public passenger transport 
• Regional planning and local development framework; economic development; waste 

management; environmental management; archaeology; access to the countryside; 
tourism 

• The planning, highways, rights of way and commons/village greens functions of the 
Planning & Regulation Committee 

 
How can I have my say? 
We welcome the views of the community on any issues in relation to the responsibilities 
of this Committee.  Members of the public may ask to speak on any item on the agenda 
or may suggest matters which they would like the Committee to look at.  Requests to 
speak must be submitted to the Committee Officer below no later than 9 am on the 
working day before the date of the meeting. 
 
For more information about this Committee please contact: 
 
Chairman - Councillor Patrick Greene 
  E.Mail: patrick.greene@oxfordshire.gov.uk 
Committee Officer - Sue Whitehead, Tel: (01865) 810262 

sue.whitehead@oxfordshire.gov.uk 
 

 

 
Tony Cloke  
Assistant Head of Legal & Democratic Services March 2010 

Public Document Pack



 

 

About the County Council 
The Oxfordshire County Council is made up of 74 councillors who are democratically 
elected every four years. The Council provides a range of services to Oxfordshire’s 
630,000 residents. These include: 
 
schools social & health care libraries and museums 
the fire service roads  trading standards 
land use  transport planning waste management 
 

Each year the Council manages £0.9 billion of public money in providing these services. 
Most decisions are taken by a Cabinet of 9 Councillors, which makes decisions about 
service priorities and spending. Some decisions will now be delegated to individual 
members of the Cabinet. 
 
About Scrutiny 
 
Scrutiny is about: 
• Providing a challenge to the Cabinet 
• Examining how well the Cabinet and the Authority are performing  
• Influencing the Cabinet on decisions that affect local people 
• Helping the Cabinet to develop Council policies 
• Representing the community in Council decision making  
• Promoting joined up working across the authority’s work and with partners 
 
Scrutiny is NOT about: 
• Making day to day service decisions 
• Investigating individual complaints. 
 
What does this Committee do? 
The Committee meets up to 6 times a year or more. It develops a work programme, 
which lists the issues it plans to investigate. These investigations can include whole 
committee investigations undertaken during the meeting, or reviews by a panel of 
members doing research and talking to lots of people outside of the meeting.  Once an 
investigation is completed the Committee provides its advice to the Cabinet, the full 
Council or other scrutiny committees. Meetings are open to the public and all reports are 
available to the public unless exempt or confidential, when the items would be 
considered in closed session 
 

If you have any special requirements (such as a large print 
version of these papers or special access facilities) please 
contact the officer named on the front page, giving as much 
notice as possible before the meeting  

A hearing loop is available at County Hall. 
 
 
 



 

 

 
AGENDA 

 

1. Apologies for Absence and Temporary Appointments  
 

2. Declarations of Interest - see guidance note on the back page  
 

3. Minutes  
 

 To approve the minutes of the meeting held on 17 February 2010 (GI3 – To be 
circulated separately)and to note for information any matters arising on them.  

4. Speaking to or petitioning the Committee  
 

SCRUTINY MATTERS 
To consider matters where the Committee can provide a challenge 

to the work of the Authority 

5. Local Transport Plan 3 (Pages 1 - 6) 
10.10 am 

 Contact Officer: Christa Brodie-Levinsohn, Performance Advisor,  
Tel: (01865) 815463 
 
 
(A) Growth & Infrastructure Scrutiny of Local Transport Plan 3 

- Report from the Working Group 
 

Recommendation: 
 
The Growth & Infrastucture Scrutiny Committee is recommended to: 
 
(a) note the work conducted by the working group over the past six 

months; and 
(b) advise on planned work, particularly with regard to how road 

shows could be carried out. 
 

 
(B) Local Transport Plan 2011-2030 Draft Policies 
 

Report to Cabinet on 16 March 2010 (To follow once the report has been 
published for Cabinet) 

6. Homes & Communities Agency Single Conversation:Local Investment Plan (CIL)  
11.10 am 

 At the last meeting the Committee suggested the above item from the current Forward 
Plan on which it wished to have an opportunity to offer advice to the Cabinet before any 
decision was taken. 
 



- 2 - 
 

 

The report by the Head of Sustainable Development  is to be considered by Cabinet at 
its meeting on 16 March 2010 and is not yet available. A discussion paper will be 
circulated separately on the CIL regulations and their impact on developer contributions 
within the County. 

 

BUSINESS PLANNING 
To consider future work items for the Committee 

7. Forward Plan  
11.40 am 

 The Committee is asked to suggest items from the current Forward Plan on which it 
may wish to have an opportunity to offer advice to the Cabinet before any decision is 
taken, together with details of what it thinks could be achieved by looking at any items. 

8. Work Programme - Update 
11.45 am 
 
Close of Business 



- 3 - 
 

 

 

Declarations of Interest 
 
This note briefly summarises the position on interests which you must declare at the meeting.   
Please refer to the Members’ Code of Conduct in Section DD of the Constitution for a fuller 
description. 
 
The duty to declare … 
You must always declare any “personal interest” in a matter under consideration, ie where the 
matter affects (either positively or negatively): 
(i) any of the financial and other interests which you are required to notify for inclusion in the 

statutory Register of Members’ Interests; or 
(ii) your own well-being or financial position or that of any member of your family or any 

person with whom you have a close association more than it would affect other people in 
the County. 

 
Whose interests are included … 
“Member of your family” in (ii) above includes spouses and partners and other relatives’ spouses 
and partners, and extends to the employment and investment interests of relatives and friends 
and their involvement in other bodies of various descriptions.  For a full list of what “relative” 
covers, please see the Code of Conduct. 
 
When and what to declare … 
The best time to make any declaration is under the agenda item “Declarations of Interest”.  
Under the Code you must declare not later than at the start of the item concerned or (if different) 
as soon as the interest “becomes apparent”.    
In making a declaration you must state the nature of the interest. 
 
Taking part if you have an interest … 
Having made a declaration you may still take part in the debate and vote on the matter unless 
your personal interest is also a “prejudicial” interest. 
 
“Prejudicial” interests … 
A prejudicial interest is one which a member of the public knowing the relevant facts would think 
so significant as to be likely to affect your judgment of the public interest.  
 
What to do if your interest is prejudicial … 
If you have a prejudicial interest in any matter under consideration, you may remain in the room 
but only for the purpose of making representations, answering questions or giving evidence 
relating to the matter under consideration, provided that the public are also allowed to attend the 
meeting for the same purpose, whether under a statutory right or otherwise. 
 
Exceptions … 
There are a few circumstances where you may regard yourself as not having a prejudicial 
interest or may participate even though you may have one.  These, together with other rules 
about participation in the case of a prejudicial interest, are set out in paragraphs 10 – 12 of the 
Code. 
 
Seeking Advice … 
It is your responsibility to decide whether any of these provisions apply to you in particular 
circumstances, but you may wish to seek the advice of the Monitoring Officer before the meeting. 
 
 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



GIMAR1010R020.doc 

Division(s): 
 

GROWTH & INFRASTRUCTURE SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
– 10 MARCH 2010 

 
GROWTH & INFRASTRUCTURE SCRUTINY OF LOCAL 

TRANSPORT PLAN 3 
 

REPORT FROM THE WORKING GROUP 
 

Introduction 
 
1. In July 2009 the Growth & Infrastructure Scrutiny Committee commissioned a 

working group of its members to take a closer look at the Council’s Local 
Transport Plan1 (LTP3) as it is being developed. The group, made up of 
Councillors Greene, Nimmo-Smith, Gibbard, Mathew, Purse, and Tanner, 
supported by transport officers and an officer from the Policy Unit, has been 
meeting regularly since September 2009. 

 
Purpose 

 
2. Scrutiny has an important role in influencing the shape of plans, policies and 

performance across the Council. The remit of the LTP3 working group is to 
scrutinise the Plan as it progresses. As such, the group’s focus is less on 
producing a ‘backward glance’ report of their findings at the end of the review 
process, so much as contributing their comments at all major stages of the 
LTP3’s development.  

 
3. Many of the working group’s suggestions have already been taken into 

consideration for the plans, procedures and policies which will form the 
foundation of the LTP3. This report focuses on these outcomes. 
 
The Working Group’s Contribution 

 
4. Discussions with transport officers have proved fruitful, the outcomes of which 

are summarised below. The list is not exhaustive but covers the main areas 
where members’ comments have been incorporated into the work of the 
LTP3.  

 
(a) Objectives 

In the first meeting of the working group, transport officers presented 
the overall objectives of the LTP3. One of the objectives was ‘Improve 
air quality and enhance the street environment’. The working group 
suggested that reducing other environmental impacts such as noise 
pollution should be incorporated as one of the goals. 
 

                                                 
1 Hereafter referred to as ‘LTP3’, or the ‘Plan’ 

Agenda Item 5

Page 1



GI 
 
 

GIMAR1010R020.doc 

Officers accepted the recommendation and changed the objectives 
accordingly (see annex 1).  Along with other changes, this was agreed 
by Cabinet when they approved the Plan’s Objectives. 

 
(b) Consultation on a “Long List” of Schemes 

Transport officers produced a “long list” of potential schemes to be 
considered for inclusion in the LTP3. Stakeholders and members of the 
public were invited to contribute to the list and the working group 
considered the list as part of this consultation process.  
 
The working group reinforced the need to manage public expectations 
around this consultation. They recommended that those who made 
suggestions for inclusion on the list of possible schemes were given 
feedback or explanation if their schemes were rejected.  
 
Officers accepted the recommendation.  

 
(c) Policy Development  

The working group kept an overview of the policies being developed to 
form the basis of the LTP3, and chose to examine five in more detail. 
These were: 
(1) Highways asset management 
(2) Public rights of way and access to natural green space 
(3) Road safety 
(4) Network management 
(5) Travel planning 

 
Recommendations were made to change the specific wording of some 
of the policies and policy statements.  For example: 
 
• The wording of Network Management Policy 3, relating to the 

effective operation of junction and crossings of the network, was 
felt to be too general, and that there was a need to identify an 
approach that would help identify which user groups this would 
apply to and under what circumstances; 

 
• A similar issue was raised in terms of Policy 1 for Public Rights 

of Way and the importance of understanding who  the Council 
maintaining this network for; 

 
• It was felt that the approach to introducing further 20mph limits 

in Oxfordshire was too restrictive in focusing on urban areas and 
that other considerations should be taken into account, e.g. rural 
schools 

 
It was also felt that there was an opportunity to make better links 
between Council / LTP Objectives and Policies, which annex 1 is 
designed to show. 
 

Page 2



GI 
 
 

GIMAR1010R020.doc 

All suggestions are currently being considered by transport officers and 
will be included in an addendum to the report to Cabinet. 
 
In the main, the working group reinforced the need for the Plan to 
reflect that: - 
• Highways are one of the most visible County Council services; 

resources need to be targeted to reflect this 
• They agreed with an ‘invest to save’ approach to highways 

management 
• Policies need to give a stronger steer for future decision making, 

in terms of identifying priorities.  
• Congestion is a real problem which needs attention, particularly 

relating to school runs  
• The implications of demographic change need to be considered 

as part of an LTP3 which is designed to cover  the next 20 years 
 
It was also underlined that hearing local voices is important, amidst the 
need to take a strategic view. 
 
Officers accepted the advice of the working group, and will use it to 
inform the development of the Plan over the coming months. 
 

Scrutiny Next Steps 
 
5. To date, the working group has been involved at all major stages of LTP3 

development, bringing regular updates to the Growth & Infrastructure Scrutiny 
Committee. This is due to continue until Council adopts the final plan in 2011, 
with further meetings of the working group being timetabled at key points.  An 
overview of the group’s work programme is outlined below:  
 
Date Stage Objective 
September 2009 Objectives & local 

differentiation stage 
Consideration ahead of 
Cabinet decision 

October/ 
December 2009 

Consultation on “long 
list” of transport 
schemes 

Overview of the approach to 
public consultation  

Jan/Feb 2009 Policy development & 
review stage 

To scrutinise the policies 
which will be developed for 
inclusion in the Plan 

March 2010 Growth & 
Infrastructure Scrutiny 

To give input on the working 
group’s current and planned 
work, and comment on the 
Cabinet report 

April 2010 Scheme identification 
and scenario 
development stage 

Consideration of the results of 
the scheme prioritisation 
process and the development 
of Scenarios for Stakeholder 
consultation 

Page 3



GI 
 
 

GIMAR1010R020.doc 

Summer 2010 Public consultation 
stage 

Preparation for potential 
roadshows/events to launch 
or support public consultation 
on the draft Plan.   

Autumn/ Winter 
2010 

Public consultation on 
draft transport Plan 

Public engagement in 
roadshows/ events 

February/ March 
2011 

Preparation of final 
Plan 

To scrutinise final Plan ahead 
of Cabinet approval 

 
6. The next major stages in the LTP3’s development, as shown above, are: 
 

(a) Prioritisation of schemes 
(b) Development and presentation of proposed scenarios 
(c) Public consultation on the draft Plan, potentially in the form of ‘road 

shows’ or events 
 
7. The working group will be involved in these stages, and welcome the views of 

the Committee to inform their future work. Particularly with regard to ‘road 
shows’ as part of public consultation and engagement with the Plan, this is an 
opportunity to hear local voices. The input of the working group is vital to form 
the bridge on which ‘top down’ policies and ‘bottom up’ consultation will meet. 

 
RECOMMENDATION 

 
8. The Growth & Infrastructure Scrutiny Committee is recommended to: 
 

(a) note the work conducted by the working group over the past six 
months; 

 
(b) advise on planned work, particularly with regard to how road 

shows could be carried out. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Contact Officer: Christa Brodie-Levinsohn 
   01865 815463 
 
26 February 2010 
 

Page 4



GI 
 
 

GIMAR1010R020.doc 

ANNEX 1 
 
LTP Objectives & Policies 
 
Council Strategic 
Objectives 
 

Local Transport Plan 
Objective 

LTP Policies 

Better Public Services 
 
Environment & 
Climate Change 
 

Improve the condition of 
local roads, footways and 
cycleways, including 
resilience to climate change 

• Highways Asset 
Management 

World Class Economy 
 
Healthy and Thriving 
Communities 

Reduce congestion  • Network Management 
• Highway Network 

Development 
• Travel Planning (TP1) 
• Parking 
• Freight & Distribution 

 
Healthy and Thriving 
Communities 
 

Reduce casualties and the 
dangers associated with 
travel  

• Road Safety 
• Motorcycling 

Better Public Services 
 
Breaking the Cycle of 
Deprivation 
 

Improve accessibility to 
work, education and 
services 

• Public Transport 
Services (PTS2, 10) 

• Disability 
• Taxis / Private Hire 

World Class Economy 
 
Healthy and Thriving 
Communities 

Secure infrastructure and 
services to support 
development  

• Public Transport 
Infrastructure (PTI 4) 

• Highway Network Dev’t 
(ND1) 

• Travel Planning (TP2) 
 

Environment & 
Climate Change 
 

Reduce carbon emissions 
from transport  

• Travel Planning (TP3) 
• Air Travel 

Environment & 
Climate Change  
 
Healthy and Thriving 
Communities 
 

Improve air quality, reduce 
other environmental 
impacts and enhance the 
street environment  

• Street Environment & 
Public Realm 

• Public Transport 
Services (PTS11) 

World Class Economy 
 
Environment & 
Climate Change 
 

Develop and increase the 
use of high quality, 
welcoming public transport 

• Public Transport 
Infrastructure & 
Services 

• Rail 
• Network Management 

(NM2) 

Page 5



GI 
 
 

GIMAR1010R020.doc 

Environment & 
Climate Change  
 
Healthy and Thriving 
Communities 

Develop and increase 
cycling and walking for local 
journeys, recreation and 
health 

• Cycling 
• Walking 
• Public Rights of Way 
• Waterways 

 

Page 6


	Agenda
	5 Local Transport Plan 3

